
         

 

 

MONTECITO 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

BREVARD COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 10, 2024 
9:30 A.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.montecitocdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
MONTECITO 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Montecito Beach Club 
208 Montecito Drive 

Satellite Beach, Florida 32937 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

ZOOM LINK: HTTPS://US02WEB.ZOOM.US/J/3341025012 
CALL IN: (305) 224 1968 MEETING ID: 334 102 5012 

April 10, 2024 
9:30 A.M. 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………......................Page 1  

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments From the Public Related to Agenda Items (Limited to 3 Minutes per Person) 

F. Approval of Consent Agenda 

1. March 13, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes…………………………...............................................Page 2 

2. March 27, 2024 Budget Workshop Minutes……………………………………………………………...Page 9 

G. Landscape and Irrigation Report 

1. ProGreen…………………………………………………………………………………………………..Page 10 

H. Old Business 

1. Status of Consumptive Use Permit (CUP) Compliance  

2. Status of Parcel Conveyance – Final 11 Parcels from Montecito CDD Holdings 

I. New Business 

1. Consider Approval of ProGreen Estimate 6415 for Mulch……………………………………………….Page 12 

2. Accept Notice of Termination of Kiosk Maintenance Agreement………………………………………..Page 13 

3. Consider Revision of Current Temporary Access Easement Form  

4. Consider Approval of Pool Lift Proposal…………………………………………………………………Page 15 

5. Discussion Regarding Residents Serving on CDD and HOA Boards Simultaneously 

J. General Manager’s Report and Related Business Items 

1. General Manager’s Report………………………………………………………………………..............Page 17 

2. Homeowner Request 

3. Supervisor Request 

K. Administrative Maters 

1. Legal Report 

2. Engineer Report 

3. Managers Report 

a. Financials………………………………………………………………………………………….Page 18 

L. Board Member Requests 

M. Comments From the Audience 

N. Announcement of Next Scheduled Board Meeting 

O. Adjourn 

 



Page 1



Page 1 of 7 
 

MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES  
MARCH 13, 2024 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Regular Board Meeting of the Montecito Community Development District (the “District”) was 
called to order at 9:30 a.m. at 208 Montecito Drive, Satellite Beach, Florida 32937.  
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which showed that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in Florida Today on September 29, 2023, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established with the following Supervisors in attendance: 
 
Catherine LeCesne, Ed Henson, Tanja Glynn, and Richard Wellman.  
 
Eric Smith was absent. 
 
Also in attendance were District Manager Frank Sakuma of Special District Services, Inc.; District 
Manager Stephanie Brown of Special District Services, Inc; Attorney Michael Pawelczyk of Billing, 
Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. (via Zoom); Engineer Stef Matthes of Culpepper & Terpening 
and General Manager Tina Campbell of Vesta Property Services. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Sakuma asked for the following items to be added to the agenda: 
 

- ProGreen Proposal #6303 
- ProGreen Proposal #6287 
- ProGreen Proposal #6288 
- ProGreen Proposal #6289 

 
There were no further additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC RELATED TO AGENDA ITEMS 

 
James Bordeau supported the temporary access easement agreement. 
 
Carol Wellman asked for increased pool cleaning, entryway flowers, and boogie board ban.  
 
Jill Deems asked about the surplus generator, several budget questions, and the reserve study, and Vesta 
website. 
 
 

Page 2



Page 2 of 7 
 

 
F.  APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
  1.  February 14, 2024, Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Glynn, seconded by Mr. LeCesne, and passed unanimously approving all 
the items under the Consent agenda.  
 
Note: At approximately 9:38 a.m., Mr. Sakuma recessed the Regular Meeting and opened the Public 
Hearing on the Amending the Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees for the Montecito Amenity Center. 
 
 
G.  PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. Proof of Publication Florida Today on 2/12/2024 

2. Receive Public Comments on Amending Amenity Center Rules-Temporary Access 
Easements. 
 

There were no public comments. 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2024-03 Amend Amenity Center Rules 

RESOLUTION 2024-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AMENDING THE ADOPTED RULES, POLICIES, AND FEES 
FOR THE MONTECITO AMENITY CENTER TO PROVIDE 
FOR CONDITIONAL TEMPORARY ACCESS OVER DISTRICT 
PROPERTY FOR LIMITED PURPOSES; PROVIDING 
DIRECTION TO DISTRICT COUNSEL AND THE DISTRICT 
MANAGER; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 
After Board discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Wellman, seconded by Ms. Glynn, and passed 
unanimously adopting Resolution No. 2024-03 Amend Center Rules. 
 
Note: At approximately 9:40 a.m., Mr. Sakuma closed the Public Hearing and simultaneously 
reconvened the Regular Board Meeting.  
 
H.  LANDSCAPE & IRRIGATION REPORTS 
 

1. ProGreen 
 
Mr. Sakuma announced the report was included in the Board package. Mr. Rusty Kahue from ProGreen 
was in the audience and presented several items for Board consideration.  

Page 3



Page 3 of 7 
 

 
The Board considered the following items, as added under “Additions/Deletions to the Agenda”: 
 

- ProGreen Proposal #6303 Irrigation Repairs – Zone 10 “bad wire” $2,200.00.  After Board 
discussion, a motion was made by Ms. Glynn, seconded by Mr. Wellman, and passed 
unanimously approving proposal #6303. 
 

- ProGreen Proposal #6287 Remove Dead Queen Palm along Carlsbad, flushcut, $150.00. After 
Board discussion, a motion was made by Ms. Glynn, seconded by Ms. LeCesne, and passed 
unanimously approving proposal #6287 once it was reduced to $150.00. 
 

- ProGreen Proposal #6288 (Board did not approve this proposal) 
 
 

- ProGreen Proposal #6289 Tree Trimming of Oak Trees and Palm Trees, $21,525.00. After Board 
discussion, a motion was made by Ms. Glynn, seconded by Ms. LeCesne, and passed 
unanimously approving proposal #6289. 

 
I.  OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. Status of Consumptive Use Permit (CUP) Compliance  
 
District Engineer Stef Mathes provided the Board with an update on the CUP compliance. He stated that 
the compliance uploads were current, and the next upload would be due in July. There are still six months 
of missing information, but the first well is recording properly. 
 

2. Status of Parcel Conveyances   
 
District Counsel Michel Pawelczyk stated that the parcel transfer is still ongoing, and documents have 
been sent to District Engineer Stef Mathes for review. He also stated he would be communicating with 
SPE to check that all documents have been signed and he also requested a certificate of completion from 
Mr. Mathes. Mr. Mathes responded that he could provide a certificate of completion and that he would 
also need to discuss encroachments with Mr. Pawelczyk. 
 
 
J. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Resolution No. 2024-04-Declaring Surplus-Sportsman Generator  
 
Mr. Sakuma presented Resolution 2024-04 entitled: 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE MONTECITO 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT CLASSIFYING CERTAIN 
TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY OF THE DISTRICT, INCLUDING A 
SPORTSMAN ELECTRIC GENERATOR, AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING 
THE DISTRICT MANAGER TO SELL OR DISPOSE OF SAID PROPERTY AS 
EXPEDITIOUSLY AS POSSIBLE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 274, 
FLORIDA STATUTES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE  

 

Page 4



Page 4 of 7 
 

 
After Board discussion, a motion was made by Ms. Glynn, seconded by Mr. Wellman, and passed 
unanimously adopting Resolution No. 2024-04 Declaring Surplus Sportsman Generator. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Wellman, seconded by Mr. Henson, and passed unanimously authorizing 
the District Manager to utilize GovDeals to sell the surplus Sportsman Electric Generator. 
 
 

2. Coordination with Architectural Review Board-Temporary Access Easements 
 
After Board discussion a motion was made by Ms. Glynn, seconded by Ms. LeCesne, and passed 
unanimously formalizing the communication process between the Montecito CDD General Manager and 
the Chairperson of the ARB Committee regarding the notification of any project applications whose 
approval would be contingent on a temporary access easement. Moving forward, the Chairperson of the 
ARB Committee will inform the CDD General Manager via email if a temporary access easement is 
required within 24 hours of application approval. 
 
 

3. Consider Approval of Facility Use Agreement-Montecito Clubhouse 
 
Mr. Sakuma notified the Board that the Facility Use Agreement was expired and that a draft agreement 
was in the board package for review. Mr. Pawelczyk explained the intent of the draft facility use 
agreement and the addition of the Community Events section. Ms. LeCesne suggested striking 
Community Events from the facility use agreement.  
 
After Board discussion, a motion was made by Ms. Glynn, seconded by Mr. Wellman, and passed 
approving the facility use agreement subject to legal review and edits, and acceptance by the Montecito 
Homeowners Associations. Ms. LeCesne dissented. 
 

4. Discussion Regarding Mail Kiosk Agreement 
 
Mr. Sakuma notified the board of the Montecito Townhome HOA intent to terminate the mail kiosk 
agreement with the Montecito CDD. Ms. LeCesne made a motion, seconded by Mr. Wellman, and 
passed unanimously to accept Montecito Townhome HOA agreement termination notification by email. 
 
Mr. Henson asked for clarification on the duties of the CDD and Post office regarding the maintenance 
of the mailboxes. Ms. LeCesne suggested maintaining both townhome and single-family home 
mailboxes. After further Board discussion Ms. LeCesne made a motion seconded by Mr. Wellman and 
passed unanimously rescinding the prior action. Consensus of the Board to direct staff to add a mailbox 
line item to the FY25 budget for future maintenance costs ($5,000). 
 

5. Discussion Regarding Prior Ticket System 
 
After Board discussion Ms. LeCesne made a motion, seconded by Mr. Henson, and unanimously passed 
approving the implementation of the prior ticket system. 
 

6. Consider Approval of Paradise Signs Proposal 
 

Page 5



Page 5 of 7 
 

Ms. Glynn made a motion Seconded by Ms. LeCesne and passed unanimously approving the Paradise 
Signs Proposal. 
 

7. Consider Resolution 2024-05-Amending Amenity Center Rules by Replacing the Term 
“Amenity Manager” with “General Manager” 

 
Mr. Sakuma presented Resolution 2024-05 entitled: 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE MONTECITO 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AMENDING THE ADOPTED 
RULES, POLICIES, AND FEES FOR THE MONTECITO AMENITY CENTER 
TO REPLACE THE TERM, “AMENITY MANAGER” WITH “GENERAL 
MANAGER;” PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
After Board discussion, Ms. Glynn made a motion, seconded by Mr. Wellman, and passed unanimously 
adopting Resolution 2024-05 Amending Amenity Center Rules by Replacing the Term “Amenity 
Manager” with “General Manager”. 
 
 

8. Discussion of New Landscape Watering-Community Wide Coordination 
 
After Board discussion, direction to the District Manager to send an email to the HOAs explaining the 
sod irrigation process. 
 
 

9. Discussion Regarding Meeting & Agenda Process-Memo Template Use-Post Meeting 
Action Items 

 
Ms. LeCesne had questions on the memo process as it pertains to resident requests. Mr. Sakuma stated 
that the requests can be submitted by contacting him via email or phone. 
 
 

10. Discussion of Budget Meeting Workshop/Planning-Reserve Study & CIP 
 
After Board discussion, direction to the District Manager to provide current vendor contracts and disaster 
reserve information to discuss at the Budget Workshop. 
 

11. Consider Approval of the Purchase of 2 Outdoor Weatherproof Bulletin Boards 
 
After Board discussion, Ms. Glynn made a motion, seconded by Ms. LeCesne, and passed unanimously 
approving the purchase of two outdoor weatherproof bulletin boards in the amount of $331.98. 
 
 
K. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT AND RELATED BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

1. General Manager’s Report 
 
The General Manager’s Report was provided in the Board package. There were no questions from the 
Board. 

Page 6



Page 6 of 7 
 

 
2. Homeowner Requests  

 
There were no homeowner requests. 
 

3. Supervisor Requests 
 
Mr. Wellman stated that the Shearwater entry gate was not operating properly and needed to be repaired. 
Ms. Campbell responded that the loops for the gates may need to be replaced. Mr. Mathes suggested 
utilizing a camera system as opposed to a loop system and could assist with a vendor contact if needed. 
 
L. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

1. Legal Report 

There was no legal report. 
 

2. Engineer Report 

There was no engineer Report. 
 

3. Manager Report 

a. Financials 

Mr. Sakuma advised the financial report was included in the Board package. There were no questions 
from the Board. 
 
M. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no comments from the Board 
 
N. COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 
There were no further comments from the audience. 
 
 
O. ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING 
 
Mr. Sakuma announced the next scheduled meeting would be held March 27, 2024, at 9:30am. 
 
P. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Ms. LeCesne made a motion adjourning the 
meeting at 12:54 p.m., seconded by Mr. Wellman, the meeting adjourned without objection. 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 

Page 7



Page 7 of 7 
 

 
 
 
 ________________________________   _________________________________ 
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairperson/Vice-Chair 

Page 8



Page 1 of 1 
 

MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

BUDGET WORKSHOP MINUTES  
MARCH 27, 2024 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Budget Workshop of the Montecito Community Development District (the “District”) was called to 
order after 9:30 a.m. at 208 Montecito Drive, Satellite Beach, Florida 32937.  
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which showed that notice of the Budget Workshop had been 
published in Florida Today on March 15, 2024, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established with the following Supervisors in attendance: 
 
Catherine LeCesne, Ed Henson, Tanja Glynn, Eric Smith and Richard Wellman.  
 
Also in attendance were District Manager Frank Sakuma of Special District Services, Inc.; District 
Manager Stephanie Brown of Special District Services, Inc; James Candela (via Zoom) of Special 
District Services, Inc. and General Manager Tina Campbell of Vesta Property Services. 
 
D. DISCUSSION REGARDING FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 BUDGET 
 
The Board and staff discussed each of the line items of the Operations/Maintenance budget as well as 
possible expenses related to items identified in the 2023 Reserve Study. Staff were directed to bring 
forward suggested changes to a future board meeting for consideration.  
 
E. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further discussion, Ms. LeCesne made a motion adjourning the workshop at 1:03 p.m., 
seconded by Mr. Wellman, the workshop adjourned without objection. 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 ________________________________   _________________________________ 
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairperson/Vice-Chair 

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



We appreciate your feedback.  Please leave a review.

https://g.page/r/CdxpXv9W4GXoEAI/review

ProGreen Services, LLC

5450 10th Avenue North

Greenacres, FL  33463

+1 8883774144

NephtelieB@progreenservices.net

www.progreenservices.net

Estimate  6415

ADDRESS

Montecito Community 

Development District

Montecito CDD 

219 E. Livingston Street

Orlando, FL  32801

DATE

03/26/2024

TOTAL

$325.00

P.O. NUMBER SALES REP

Enhancement Rusty Kahoe

DATE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Landscape Installation - Deliver and Install Mulch along the CDD 
shrub easement areas by the mailboxes off Ventura. 5 Cubic Yards

5 65.00 325.00

TOTAL $325.00

We appreciate the opportunity!

THANK YOU.

Accepted By Accepted Date

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Central Florida Stairlift LLC
Date:

QUANTITYQuantity Unit Price Line Total
1 $5,695.00 $5,695.00

1 Included Included

1 Included Included

1 Included Included

1 Included Included

Subtotal 5,695.00$                

Sales Tax @ 0.00% -                           

TOTAL 5,695.00$                

350 lbs. Weight Capacity

5 Year Manufacturers Warranty

Battery Powered 

Charger Included

In Stock lift - Immediate Installation (allow 1-5 business days)

100% Payment Due Upon Ordering.

No Sales Tax

We accept all major credit cards or check by mail.

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

QUOTE

Description

2654 Red Fox Run
Chuluota, FL 32766
407-590-4143
chris@centralfloridastairlift.com

Montecito CDD

3/26/2024

208 Montecito Dr
Satellite Beach, FL 
321-469-9660

dgrimm@vestapropertyservices.com

Aqua Creek Ranger 2 ADA Pool Lift

Aqua Creek Ranger 2 ADA Anchor System

Special Concrete Base Support Under the Paver Deck

Professional Installation including the Concrete Base

Ranger Cover

Page 15



Page 16



GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

TO BE DISTRIBUTED 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER 

Page 17



 Montecito
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
March 2024

Page 18



Page 19



Field Management Subtotal 

Amenity Center Operations Subtotal

Irrigation Subtotal

Stormwater Control Subtotal

Page 20



EXPENDITURES

Landscaping Subtotal

Commons Areas, Right of Ways & Perimeter Walls Subtotal

Security Monitoring Services Subtotal

Utilities Subtotal

Other Subtotal

Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33


	Montecito Community Development District - April 10, 2024 Regular Board Meeting book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	Approval of Consent Agenda
	March 13, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	March 27, 2024 Budget Workshop Minutes

	ProGreen
	Consider Approval of ProGreen Estimate 6415 for Mulch
	Accept Notice of Termination of Kiosk Maintenance Agreement
	Consider Approval of Pool Lift Proposal
	General Manager’s Report
	Financials




